Ruby M. Sisson LIBRARY BOARD
MFjﬂ RIAL Andrea Cox, President
LIBRARY

i (il Sherry Spears, Vice President

UPPER SAN JUAN LIBRARY DISTRICT David Hamilton, Treasurer

811 San Juan St Ronnie Van Atta, Secretary
Pagosa Springs, CO 81147 Katie Cloudman

o _ Marcie Taylor
Barbara Brattin, Library Director Al Northup

Regular Meeting of the Library Board of Trustees
October 16, 2024

4pm
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83398449146)

AGENDA

L. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
iL AGENDA APPROVAL
M. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Iv. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of the September 18,2024 meeting minutes
V. REPORTS
a. Foundation/ Development Report (Cindi Galabota)
b. September 30, 2024 Financial Report (Director)
c. Building Design Development Committee Report (Katie, Ronnie)
d. Director’s Report
VL NEW BUSINESS
a. Proposed amendments to the Personnel Policy
b. Colorado Retirement Association Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement
VII.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. 2" Draft 2025 Budget
VIII. LOOKING FORWARD
a. Schedule signers at Bank of the San Juans

GOOD OF THE ORDER:
NEXT MEETING: November 20, by Zoom, https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83398449146

ADJOURNMENT

Library Vision: Mountains of opportunity to inspire ideas, enrich lives, and create community.

Library Mission: Your Library serves as a welcoming portal for open and equal access to information for residents and
visitors of the community. Resources are provided through malerials, classes, and events for achieving lifelong
leaming goals in culture, education, and leisure.



Upper San Juan Library District
Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes
September 18, 2024

This meeting took place as an audio/video online meeting using Zoom. The front door of the library, the

library website and Facebook page, and the Pagosa SUN all posted the public meeting announcement with
instructions on how to attend.

: Board President Andrea Cox noted that everyone was positively
identified and able to communicate. Andrea called the meeting of the US)LD Board to order at 4:02 p.m.

Trustees Present: Katie Cloudman, Andrea Cox, David Hamilton, Sherry Spears, Marcie Taylor, Ronnie
VanAtta, Foundation Director Cindi Galabota, Assistant Library Director Josie Snow, and Library Director
Barb Brattin.

Absent: Al Northrup

Consent Agenda: The board approved the agenda (Katie, Ronnie).

Minutes: The board approved the minutes of the August 21, 2024, meeting (Sherry, David).

Public Comment/Coyrespondence: Eddie, a close neighbor to the library, spoke to the board. He spoke about
cars at all hours, repeated overnight camping, noise, pollution, and other occurrences at the library parking
lot after hours. David is contacting the police department about these problems. Barb is adding a 6-8 a.m.
timeframe clause to our snow removal contract for bidding. The library plans to add three more no overnight
camping signs to the lot. For more information about the parking lot Wi-Fi hours, see New Business,

Reports:

*  Foundation/Development Report (Cindi): She reported the following items:

o The Weekend with Anne Hillerman fundraising event went very well. | am still taking care of a
few expenses, and a little income is stilt coming in, but I expect that we netted approximately
$4000,

o The Friends of the Library is hosting their fall popup book sale on Saturday, October 12 from
9am to 3pm in the large meeting room at the library. Stop by for some great sales. Also, attached
is the flier - please share!

o The Steering Committee is working to raise approximately $800,000 more by spring of 2025.
This timing to finish raising funds is crucial to the timing of construction to start. If you know
anyone that we should talk to, please reach out to me.

o  Livia and Bob Lynch are hosting a "Heritage Party" on Sunday, September 29. They have invited
several people who knew Ruby Sisson to gather, share stories, and hear about the expansion. We
want to create a way to record this important oral history, hopefully partnering with high school
students.
lam working on grants and plan to raise about $700,000 more from grant awards. | have a
packet going out to the Adams Family Foundation and 1 am working on several other grants.

o The parking lot party is moving to the spring.

August 31, 2024, Financial Report (David): David reported that the financials look good. If a property tax
relief does occur, the resultis approximately $39-67K in tax revenue. Downloadables are at 929% because
of a lump sum payment. Our use of downloadables has increased since Denver's became unavailable.
Building Design Development Committee (Sherry, Ronnie): The teen room and the maker's space switched
places. The group discussed various ideas about the workroom tables and cubbies for sorting purposes.

The group saw the 3D version for the first time. Lauren is ballparking the numbers to determine what we
can deliver for the available funds. The garden may have to wait.



Director’'s Report:

My first two weeks on the job were a real delight. Our staff is fantastic, and | feel very lucky to

work with them. Their skill level is impressive, and the teamwork and camaraderie make this a

terrific place to work.

I have been very busy as 1 build a 2025 budget proposal, researching fixed costs and talking to

vendors about available technology support services. Much of the technology is outdated and the

network is pieced together. Although it works, some of the network's critical components are at

their end of life, and it would be wise for us to begin replacing those camponents with newer

equipment to ensure uninterrupted service. The building itself is also in need of more attention,

and although we will not want to spend a lot of money on a building we are preparing to change,

simple things like deep cleaning and organizing our supplies will go a long way in offering a more

appealing and comfortable facility. As part of our 2025 budget discussion, I will present multiple

year plans to get us up to date and increase network security as well as improve the building and

grounds maintenance.

My first few weeks have also been spent reacquainting myself with the Colorado library

community at large. Anna at CLIC has been very helpful explaining how things are structured. |

have also spoken with several area library directors who have been helpful connecting me with

consultants they rely on. Anna has provided salary survey information to help us build a fair staff

compensation plan for 2025 that recognizes the hard work and expertise of this staff and the

financial strains of living in a resort community.

Barb met with the new coordinator of MET, who told her that they would like to place one of

their waiting huts somewhere on the property.

Director’s 90 Day Priorities:

1. Manage the architectural design phase of the building project on behalf of US]LD.

2. Update job descriptions and propose an updated wage scale based on comparative libraries.

3. Develop a three-year Technology Plan that informs the next budget cycle.

4. Deliver a final draft 2025 budget proposal for approval at the October 16, 2024, board
meeting.

5. Participate as a full team member to help with daily tasks and acquaint myself with our
library users.

New Busingss:

*  Director authority to sign checks under $5,000: The board approved a motion that Barb, our new
director, can sign checks without cosigners under $5,000 as of September 19, 2024 (Katie, David).

»  Parking lot Wi-Fi: The board approved a motion to shut down automatically the Wi-Fi network from
10 p.m. until 6 a.m. seven days a week (Sherry, Katie). This time aligns with the town's quiet time.

*  First Draft 2025 Budget: The board discussed the budget and requested no changes. The budget
includes outsourcing a janitor 24 hours a week, a 20 hour per week library assistant, and technology
improvements among other things,

®  Staff Benefits

o PTO/Sick Time Separation - Colorado mandates: The library complies with the Healthy
Families and Workplaces Act.

o Retirement eligibility: The library is one of two in the state where an employee must work
for a year to enroll in the retirement program. The board approved a motion to amend the
current policy and allow an employee to enroli at the time of hire with a 4% match employer
contribution effective immediately (Katie, David).

Unfinished Business:

None.



Looking Forward:
s Hybrid meetings: The board discussed the possibility of hybrid meetings going forward. The board is
considering this at its next meeting.

o  Schedule signers at Bank of the San juans; The signers are meeting on Thursday, September 26, 2024,
at Bank of the 5an Juans to add Barb to the signers. This special meeting will have separate minutes.

Good of the Order: None.
Next Meeting: October 16, 2024, by Zoom, https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83398449146
Adjournment: A motion adjourned the meeting at 5:40 p.m. (Ronnie, Sherry).

Respectfully submitted,
Ronnie VanAtta, US)LD Secretary



Jan-Sept 2024

Property Tax

Other Income
Unanticipated Donation(s} *
Total Income

Capital & Fixed Expenses
Building Expenses

Office Expenses

Programs & Public Use Materials
Personnel & Benefits

Total Expenses

Net Ordinary Income
Development Officer Salary
HVAC Replacement

Master Plan Expenses

Gift to Foundation

Net Income

Cash on hand:

2024

5986,983
$69,054
50
$1,056,036

$26,360
$29,908
$34,595
$60,314
$303,759
$454,936

$601,100

$601,100

$1,394,335

2023

$645,928

557,419
s0

5$703,347

$19,471
$29,959
$47,740
$56,700
$285,082
$438,952

$264,395

$264,395

$962,315

2022
$614,790
$27,676
50

$642,466
$17,061
$27,547
$33,345
$50,343
$267,105
$396,002

$246,464

$2,500

$243,964

$758,891

2021

$561,761
$36,777
$5.000

$603,538
$18,007
533,369
539,096
550,553
$257,275
$398,300

$205,238

$205,238

$633,472

2020

$559,441
$25,516

£19,116
$604,073

$20,652
$21,825
$34,689
549,760
$269,395
$396,321
$207,752
$24,989
$155,026
519,729

$8,008

$556,843

Maote: 2021 net income differs from QBs - Foundation Reimbursabkle Expenses not in this report's bottom line.

*2020: May Friends of the Library computers $19,116; Nov $22,300 architectural fees grant
*2021: June Foundation ESL funding $5,000



9:31 AM Ruby M. Sisson Memorial Library

10/111/24 - .
Accrual Basis Profit & Loss Previous Year Comparison
January through September 2024

Jan - Sep 24 Jan - Sep 23

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
Foundation Admin Fee Income 800.00 800.00
Gifts/Donations {general) 5,035.29 6,238.82
Gifts/Donations (restrictad) 300.00 0.00
Grants (general} 0.00 3,537.32
Grants (restricted)
Federal 6,176.00 0.00
Grants {restricted) - Other 1,677.07 9,687.00
Total Grants {restricted) 7.853.07 9,687.00
INCOME - PROPERTY TAX
Property Tax 933,487.10 596,790.46
Specific Ownership Tax 55,362.11 49,225.97
Abatements -1,866.68 -88 87
Total INCOME - PROPERTY TAX 986,982.53 645,927.56
INCOME - REVENUE
Book Sales - Taxable 1,514.50 1,441.60
Collection Income (Special) 10.00 20.65
Coples 8,311.96 7.459.42
Lost Books/ILL 563.84 636.99
Other Revenue (& library cards) 194.25 171.20
Use of Equipment 1,079.14 1,072.00
Sale of Replaced Computers 0.00 50.00
Total INCOME - REVENUE 11,673.68 10,851.86
Interest Income 41,528.79 25672.45
Scholarship{s} Income 500.00 0.00
Total Income 1,054 ,673.37 702,715.01
Gross Profit 1,054,673.37 702,715.01
Expense
CAPITAL OUTLAY & FIXED EXPENSES
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Equipment & Furniture >$500 0.00 601.28
Technology > $500
Software - New 0.00 36.00
Technology > $500 - Other 0.00 941.00
Total Technology > $500 0.c0 977.00
Total CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 1,578.28
FIXED EXPENSES
Treasurer's Fees 26,360.14 17,892.99
Total FIXED EXPENSES 26,360.14 17,882.99
Total CAPITAL OQUTLAY & FIXED EXPENSES 26,360.14 19,471.27
OPERATING EXPENSES
BUILDING EXPENSES
Alarm Monitoring 858.00 940.00
Bldg Maintenance Costs 672.11 640.91
Carpet Cleaning 1,507.00 1,104.00
Janitorial 10,800.00 10,800.00
Landscape/Grounds Maint 431.03 101.02
Snow Removal 2,282.50 4,922.97

Page 1 of 4



9:31 AM
10/11/24
Accrual Basis

Ruby M. Sisson Memorial Library

Profit & Loss Previous Year Comparison
January through September 2024

Jan - Sep 24 Jan - Sep 23

Trash 1,182.35 1,092.86
Utilities
Electricity 5,181.87 5,469.70
Gas 227.72 241.20
Geothermal 2,940.00 1,229.74
Water & Sewer 3,825.43 3.416.16
Total Utilities 12,175.02 10,356.80
Total BUILDING EXPENSES 29,908.01 29,958 66
LIBRARY OFFICE EXPENSES
Accounting & Budgeting 2,735.25 2,834.75
Auditing / Tax Return Prep 1,000.00 14,000.00
Collection & Credit Card Fees 84.93 63.99
Equipment & Furniture < $500 117.24 1,152.92
Eqmt & Computer Maint & Parts 432.02 232.71
Insurance Expense
Insurance - Bonding 730.00 365.00
Insurance-Directors & Officers 2,540.00 2,256.00
Insurance - Liab/Contents/Bldg 7,513.00 6,462.00
Total Insurance Expense 10,783.00 9,083.00
Internet / ISP 2,53368 2,436.75
Maint Agmts & Licenses
Hardware Maint Agmts (Xerox) 2,536.96 2,699.11
Software Maint Agmts 5,887.33 5,000.07
Total Maint Agmts & Licenses 8,424.29 7.699.18
Office Supplies 501219 4,866.26
Postage / PO Box 335.20 368.13
Sales Tax Expense 137.83 0.00
Storage 1,160.00 1,140.00
Telephone 1,739.68 1,964 91
SUBCONTRACTORS
IT Consulting 100.00 350.00
Total SUBCONTRACTORS 100.00 350.00
Total LIBRARY OFFICE EXPENSES 34,595.31 465,312.60
PROGRAMS & PUBLIC USE EXPENSES
PROGRAMS
Adult Programs {LLL PALS,ESL) 2,653.06 2,978.34
Children’s Programs 1,027.97 3,429.27
Summer Reading Program 1,664.28 2,188.36
Teen Programs 1,594.15 837.06
Total PROGRAMS 6,939.46 9,433.03
PUBLIC RELATIONS
Advertising - PR 2,706.85 1,660.95
Volunteer Background Checks 363.85 561.50
Volunteer/Staff Expenses 864.66 38511
Total PUBLIC RELATIONS 3,835.46 2,607.56
PUBLIC USE MATERIALS
Electronic Data Bases 10,231.42 9,905 43
Lost Items Expenses 7.95 85.50

Non-Print Material

Page 2 of 4



9:31 AM Ruby M. Sisson Memorial Library

10/11/24 - .
Accrual Basis Profit & Loss Previous Year Comparison
January through September 2024

Jan - Sep 24 Jan - Sep 23

Audio Books 4,809.86 4,748.89
DVD/Video 1,969.26 1.863.57
Downloadable E-Books/Audio 14,023.92 12,046.78
Total Non-Print Material 20,803.04 18,660.24
Print Material
Books 16,569.25 14,377 .62
Subscriptions 1,827.27 1,650.92
Total Print Material 18,396.52 16,028.84
Total PUBLIC USE MATERIALS 49,438.93 44,660.01
Total PROGRAMS & PUBLIC USE EXPENSES 60,313.85 56,700.60
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 124,817.17 132,971.86
STAFF, BENEFITS & TRAINING
STAFF EDUCATION
Conferences/Workshops 485.00 620.00
Memberships 1,104.00 4,790.24
Travel/Food Expenses 1,239.83 1,294.82
Total STAFF EDUCATION 2,828.83 6,805.06
SALARIES & BENEFITS
BENEFITS
Employee Assist Program {EAP) 3,520.85 3,520.85
Health Insurance Allowance 21,681.82 22,000.00
Social Security 16,744.53 15,458 22
Medicare 3,916.07 3,615.21
Retirement {CRA) 6,134.63 5,344.67
State Unemployment 540.31 450.64
Worker's Compensation Insurance 0.00 514.00
Total BENEFITS §2,538.21 50,951.58
Salaries & PTO
Holiday Pay 9,5653.88 9,303.69
Paid Time Off (PTO) 32,482.00 2412272
SALARIES 205,473.36 192,961.82
Total Salaries & PTO 247,509.25 226,368.23
Substitute Staff (subcontract) 882.50 937.50
Total SALARIES & BENEFITS 300,929.96 278,277.32
Total STAFF, BENEFITS & TRAINING 303,758.79 285,082.38
Total Expense 454,936.10 437,525 51
Net Ordinary Income 589,737.27 265,189.50
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Other Income (dividends,claims) 1,362.97 632.35
Reserve Income
Reimb from Foundation 000 0.00
Total Reserve Income 0.00 0.00
Total Other Income 1,362.97 632.35
Other Expense
Reserve Expenses
Master Plan Expenses 62,412 50 0.00
Total Reserve Expenses 62,412 50 0.00
Expenses to be Reimb 0.00 127.12

Page 3of 4



9:31 AM
10/11/24
Accrual Basis

Suspense - Unknown
Void
Total Other Expense

Net Other Income
Net Income

Ruby M. Sisson Memorial Library

Profit & Loss Previous Year Comparison
January through September 2024

Jan - Sep 24 Jan - Sep 23
31.59 0.00

0.00 0.00
62,444.09 127.12
-61,081.12 50523
538,656.15 265,694.73

Page 4 of 4



10:25 AM Ruby M. Sisson Memorial Library

10/14/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2024
Sep 30, 24
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Bank of the San Juans 1460 120,110.75
Investment Acct Bank of SJ 4026 11,495.60
Expansion Checking-3365 1.00
Colorado Trust 1,262,727.99
Total Checking/Savings 1,394,335.34
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 12,441,089
Total Accounts Receivable 12,441.09
Other Current Assets
Property Taxes Receivable 600,525.10
Total Other Current Assets 600,525.10
Total Current Assets 2,007,301.53
Fixed Assets
Books (Inventory) 457,159.08
Buldings 1,498,755.00
Building Improvements 168,372.40
Furniture & Equipment 379,176.00
Land 362,254.00
Land Improvements 470,940.00
Accumulated Depreciation -1,553,291.62
Total Fixed Assets 1,783,364.86
TOTAL ASSETS 3,790,666.39
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
*Accounts Payable 16,753.33
Total Accounts Payable 16,753.33
Credit Cards
Commerce Bank 1756 2,151.25
Total Credit Cards 2,151.25
Other Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue 600,525.10
Payroll Current Liabilities
Accrued Vacation/PTO 21,939,116
Retirement Plan Payable 4,562.61
State Withheld & SUTA Payable 194.31
Total Payroll Current Liabilities 26,696.08
Total Other Current Liabilities 627,221.18
Total Current Liabilities 646,125.76
Total Liabilities 646,125.76

Equity

Page 1



10:25 AM Ruby M. Sisson Memorial Library

10111124 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2024
Sep 30, 24
Offset for Long Term Liab -21,939.16
INVESTMENTS IN FIXED ASSETS 1,783,364.86
LIMITED FOR EMERGENCIES (Tabor) 4,633.65
COMMITTED FOR IMP & OUTREACH 162,000.00
Cpening Bal Equity 1.00
Unrestricted Net Assets 677,824.13
Net Income 538,656.15
Total Equity 3,144,540.63
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,790,666.39

Page 2



Upper San Juan Library District
Regular Meeting of the Board, October 16, 2024

Director’s Report

It is clear from my interaction with the public that the USILD is a beloved local institution, and all the
praise goes to this library staff for providing this community with the service they value and appreciate.
This goodwill is backed up by 2022 statistics from the state library. As you can see, USILD's per capita
income falls just above the median for other libraries our size, and well below the median for Tourist
Community Libraries. Yet, USILD’s circulation per capita is nearly that of the wealthiest libraries and
registration as percent of population exceeds the median of tourist libraries. This translates into
exceptional value for our taxpayers.

Public
Sarvice Registration
Total Staff per | Library Hours as Percent
Expenditures | 1,000 Visits per | Circulation | per of LSA
Location per Capita Served Capita per Capita | Week Population | Population
Upper San Juan
Library District $45.91 0.38 5.68 7.98 55 124.02% 12,754
Median CO
Libraries serving
10,000-25,000 $34.29 0.61 2.64 37 57 80.70% 13,077
Median CO Tourist
Community
Libraries $106.76 1.33 6.99 8.04 58 87.00% 8,354

I had the pleasure of meeting with area library directors at the Mancos Public Library and | learned quite
a bit about how other libraries engage with their communities. There is a strong desire to offer after
school care, Friday all-day library camps, and summer camps. Mancos achieves this best through a
robust volunteer program supervised by their Children’s Librarian, Bayfield stretches their staff to
accomplish a limited number of these programs. Josie and | are locking forward to expanded space in
the new library building to offer similar programs to our local kids.

One of the main topics among directors was funding, and the new 5.25% rules that go into effect for
2026 budgets. Our property tax increased 4.3% this year, well below the future increase limits. The
formula is a bit more complicated than a straight 5.5% limit per year, taking into account population
growth and new construction. This will be a constant topic for continuing education in 2025 and we will
be ready when the time comes. Should these limits become stifling in future years, we will have the
opportunity to place an override measure on the ballot in November of any odd numbered year.

We're getting a head start on technology upgrades. A new firewall is installed as well as a new
automatic, redundant backup system, providing much relief to the worry of the risky practice in place-
storing administrative files an a staff computer hard drive. Should the computer fail, we will be able to
restore files quickly.



Upper San Juan Library District
Regular Meeting of the Board, October 16, 2024

Backeground Information on Agenda Items

Proposed Amendments to the Personnel Policy

The enclosed draft of the Personnel Policy includes language to update the change in retirement benefit
eligibility to immediate upon hire. The section on Professional Activities shows proposed changes that
would reimburse mileage and other travel expenses for pre-approved professional activities.

Requested motion: Amend the personnel policy as presented, including the approved change in
retirement benefit eligibility and providing for expense reimbursement for travel associated with pre-
approved professional activities.

Colorado Retirement Association Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement

The enclosed agreement reflects the modifications approved by the Library Board at the September
2024 meeting to allow for immediate employee enroliment and immediate employer contributions
upon hire. There is a different section discovered upon review with CRA staff that | propose the Board
amend. Section 1.9 (p. 12) of the Agreement, Definition of Compensation, offers employers a list of
types of compensation they may exclude from retirement contributions. The USILD agreement currently
excludes Holiday Pay from the eligible types of pay that may be used in retirement contribution
calculations. Removing this exclusion and including Holiday Pay as eligible for retirement contributions
would result in a $538 increase in employer retirement contributions in 2025.

Requested mation: Amend the current Colorado Retirement Association Retirement Plan and Trust
Agreement to remove the exclusion of Holiday Pay for the purpose of calculating employer and
employee contributions.

2™ Draft 2025 Budget

The 2025 Budget invests in several critical areas to dramatically improve our library services, reward our
outstanding staff for their impactfui work, and contribute to the successful completion of our new library
building. These focus areas receive additional funds to achieve these goals:

Technology infrastructure

Facilities maintenance

Capital outlay for new building furniture

Collection development

Salary adjustments over a 2 year period to align wages with Colorado tourist library median
salaries.

kR W e

Requested Motion: Approve the 2025 Budget as presented and direct the Library Director to publish a
“Notice of Budget” to acknowledge receipt of this budget proposal by the Board of Trustees and to set a
public budget hearing to be held at the November meeting of the Board of Trustees.



Employee Benefits

Social Security

Social Security will be extended to all employees.

Health Insurance Stipend

The Library District does not carry an employee health insurance program. An additional amount will be
added 1o the monthly salary of all full-time employees to offset private health insurance costs.

Retirement Benefits

iull—time—emplayae New fuII tlme employees are ellglble to pamclpate in the I|brary s rettrement
plan beginning on the date of hire. Participation is mandatory for full time employees. Part-time
employees are not eligible.

FrE E =12 g =1 ary: The employee
contnbunon to retlrement is currently 4%, wath an addltlonal 4% match by the Library District.
Retirement contributions are managed by the Colorado Retirement Assoclation (CRA).

For more information, speak with the Director or the CRA representative for USJLD.
Tuition
See section "Educational Assistance” later in manual.

Ability to Order Materials at USJLD Discount

The vendor discount provided on materials for the collection will be extended to all employees for their
personal use as lang as the vendor agreement allows. For more information or the current discount from
vendor, speak with the Director,

Adopted: June 21, 2023 Page 12



Staff Development

In-Service Training

Orientation and training are provided for all new staff members. A staff training program
designed to encourage continuous development of Employees, to promote quality performance
and job satisfaction is part of Library policy. Continuous Staff training will take place as needed
to keep up with changes in the workplace.

Communications

Email and notes in posted areas are utilized to keep staff informed.

Staff Meetings

In order to promote cooperation and a sharing of information, informal periodic staff
meetings are conducted as time allows.

Volunteers will be included when deemed necessary. The Board realizes the importance of
planning sessions and allows the staff to meet up to an extra four hours a month. Staff meetings
will be compensated as work time.

Advanced Education

Further education and training at al levels is encouraged. Salary-adjustments Promotions may
depend upon continuing education.

Professional Activities

USJLD maintains memberships in the Colorado Library Association, the American Library
Association and other professional organizations. Staff can use the resources these
organizations provide.

Time with pay up to eight hours per day may-be-allewad will be granted to staff members wishing
attending meetings and conferences sponsored by professional library or library-related
organizations of which USJLD is a member, if pre-approved by the Library Director.

Reimbursement for seme pre-approved travel-related experiences will be offered according to
the following schedules.

In state

Mileage, hotel, and meal reimbursement rates posted by the Office of the State Controller at the
time of travel.

Out of State

Economy class airline ticket

Hotel at the conference hotel rates.

Taxi and shuttle service between hotel and airport while on location.
Up to $75/ day for meals

Reimbursement requesis must be accompanied by itemized receipts. The cost of alcoholic
beverages will not be reimbursed.

Adopted: fune 21, 2023 Page 13



COLORADO RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
RETIREMENT PLAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

Association Member / Participating Employer: Upper San Juan Library District

Association Member Original Participation Dare: January 1, 1986

Participation Agreement Effective Dare: S€PIember 18, 2024

Prior Participation Agreement Date: May 1 , 2020
Please indicate the effective date of the last Panicipation Agreement

PREAMBLE

I AGREEMENT. By this Agreement, by and between Colorado Retirement Association
(“Association”) and the Association Member specified in this Participation Agreement (*Agreement™),
the Association Member adopts as a Panticipating Employer the Colorado Retirement Association
Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement (the *Plan"), as amended and restated cffective January 1, 2020,
and as further amended or supplemented from time to time, subject to the modifications set forth in this
Agreement. This Agreement amends and supersedes any previous Participation Agreement made by and
between the Association Member and the Assaciation,

Il ADOPTION OF THE PLAN. The Association Member adopts the Plan as a Participating
Employer pursuant to the terms of the Plan and this Participation Agreement, effective as of the
Participation Agreement Effective Date. The Participating Employer’s participation in the Plan is
conditioned on the timely payment by the Participating Employcr of its proportional share of
contributions under the Plan, and in the case of contributions deducted from a Participant’s
Compensation, payment wil} be transmitted 1o the Trust as soon as practicable afier such amounts would
otherwise have been paid to the Panicipant.

ini. REVIEW OF TiIE PLAN. The Participating Employer has reviewed the Plan, and in
particular Article 13 of the Plan, addressing Participating Employers. The Participating Employer has
consulted, or had opportunity to consult, with its legal and tax advisors with reference to the Plan and
this Participation Agreement.

V.  APPROVAL OF PLAN TRUSTEE AND ADMINISTRATOR. The Parlicipating Employer
approves and confirms the Trustee and Administrator designated by the Association in the Plan to serve
in each such capacities.

V. ASSOCIATION AS AGENT. The Participating Employer irrevocably designates the
Association as its agenl as set forth in Article 13 of the Plan addressing Participating Employers for all
purposes of the Plan, and authorizes the Association, on behalf of the Participating Employer, o perform

CRA Hetirement Plan and Trust Agreement
Participation Agreement — Janusry 1, 2020 1



the specific act or acts and to exercise the specific powers granted under the Plan. The Association or its
designee has authority to make any and all necessary rules or regulations, binding upon the Participating
Employer and its Employees and Officials and their Bencficiaries, to effectuate the purpose of the Plan.

VI. PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS. All contributions made by the
Participating Employer under the Plan and this Participation Agreement will be determined separatcly by
each Participating Employer and allocated only among the eligible Participants of the Participating
Employer making the contribution in accordance with Section 3.1 of the Plan.

CRA Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement
Participation Apreement = January 1, 2020

-



PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER ELECTIONS
(Section numbers below correspond to sections of the Plan.)
Norte: Officials may opt out of Plan participation; however, if Officials do participate in the Plan, they do
not have to satisfy any minimum cligibility requirements. Accordingly, Sections 2.2 and 2.5(a) below
only pertain to Eligible Employees. Additionally, Officials are always fully vested in Employer

Contributions and Prior Service Benefit Contributions. Accordingly, Sections 5.1(b)(1), 5.1(c), 5.1(d),
5.1(e) und 5.1(g) below only pertain to Eligible Employees.

1.16  EuiGiBLE EMPLOYEE. “Eligible Employce” means the following:
[Specify one option only.]
{1 All Employees. Every Employee of the Participating Employer.

(0 Al Benefitted Positions. Every Employee in a benefitted position of the Participating
Employer, in accordance with the Participating Employer's standard personnel practices.

P Every Employee of the Participating Employer who works at least 12 months per
yearand at least _40  hours per week.

O Every Employee of the Participating Employer who works at least hours per
year,

28]
-~

COMMENCEMENT OF PARTICIPATION. An Eligible Employee will commence participation in
the Plan and begin making and receiving contributions:

[Specify one optian only with appropriate sub-option, as applicable.]
D4  Immediately as of:
P4  The Eligible Employee's Date of Hire.
O The first day of the Eligible Employee's first full payroll period.
p
O Immediately after Plan Months. (Not to exceed twelve (12) months).

O Upon the first day of the payroll period following a month period. {Not to
exceed twelve {12) months).

If an Official has not waived participation in the Plan, such Official will commence
participation in the Plan and begin making and receiving contributions as of the first
day of the month caiucident with or immediately succeeding such Official’s
commencement af term af office.

CRA Retirement Plap and Trust Agreement
Participation Agreement — January 1, 2020 3



2.5(a) REEMPLOYMENT DATE MORE TtaN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER TERMINATION DATE.

X

Immediate commencement of participation, in accordance with the Participating
Employer’s election per Section 2.2.

If this option is selected, skip the remaining options in this Section 2.5(a) and move on
to Section 2.6(a). If this aption Is not selected, specify one option in each aof the below
categorics.

Prior Emplovment with Participating Emplover.

[n accordance with the default provisions of Section 2.5(a) of the Plan, in the event an
Employee lerminates employment with the Participating Employer more than thirty (30)
days before his or her Reemployment Date with the Panticipating Employer, the
Participating Employer will not grant prior service credit for purposes of eligibility.

In the event an Employee terminates employment with the Participating Employer more
than thirty (30) days before his or her Reemployment Date with the Participating
Employer, the Participating Employer will grant service credit for purposes of eligibility
provided the Employee has a Reemployment Date within Plan Months (not to
exceed twelve (12) Plan Months) of his or her Termination Date,

Prior Employment with any Association Member (other than Participating
Employer).

in accordance with the defaunlt provisions of Section 2.5(a) of the Plan, in the cvent an
Employee terminates employment with an Association Member more than thirty (30)
days before his or her Reemployment Date with a different Participating Employer, the
Pacticipating Employer will not grant prior service credit for purposes of eligibility.

In the event an Employee terminates employment with an Association Member more than
thirty (30) days before his or her Reemployment Date with another Participating
Employer, the Participating Employer will grant service credit for purposes of eligibility
provided thc Employee has a Reemployment Date within Plan Months (not to
exceed twelve (12) Plan Months) of his or her Termination Date.

CRA Retirement Plan and Trust Agrecment
Participation Agreement = Jununry |, 2020 d



2.6(a) CHANGE IN STATUS.

[Specify one option anly. [

O

X

Status of Employee is not applicable. All Employees are Eligible Employees, per
Section 1.]6.

In accordance with the default provisions of Section 2.6(a) of the Plan, a Participant who
continues in the employ of the Participating Employer but ceases to be employed as an
Eligible Employee is not eligible to make Mandatory Participant Contributions to the
Plan under Section 3.3, is not entitled to Employer Contributions under Plan Section 3.1
and is not entitled to Prior Service Benefit Contributions (if any) under Plan Section 3.2.

[If this aption is chosen, select one aof the following sub-options, as applicable.]

E Upen return to an employment status meeting the eligibility criteria, the Eligible
Employee will recommence participation immedialely, in accordance with the
Participating Employer's election above in Section 2.2.

[:l Upon return to an employment status meeting the eligibility criteria, the Eligible
Employee must complete the applicable commencement of participation period
elected above in Section 2.2 before recommencing participation in the Plan. Such
applicable commencement period will begin as of the date the Employee returns
to such employment status.

A Participant who continues {n the employ of the Participating Employer but ceases to be
employed as an Eligible Employee will be decmed to satisfy the cligibility provisions and
will continue to be eligible to make Mandalory Participant Contributions to the Plan
under Section 3.3, will continue to receive Employer Contributions under Plan

Section 3.1, and will continue to receive Prior Service Benefit Contributions (if any)
under Plan Section 3.2, despite the change in status.

CRA Retirement Plon and Trust Agreement

Pacticipntion Agreement —January 1, 2020 5



3.1(a) EmrLoYER CONTRIBUTIONS. The Participating Employer will make an Employer Contribution
for each Panticipant (no less than three percent (3%)) for each Plan Month as specified below.

[Specify one option only.]

X The Participating Emplayer will contribute 4 o%ofthe Compensation of such
Participant for the Plan Month.

[(]  The Participating Employer’s contribution for each Participant will equal an amount
directed by each Participant, with a minimum of %2 and 2 maximum of % of the
Compensation of such Participant.

[0  The Participating Employer will contribute for cach Participant:

% of Compensation based on attaincd Years of Service

___ % of Compensation based on ___attained Years of Service
* % of Compensation based on ____ attained Years of Service
¢ ___ %of Compensation based on ___ anained Years of Service
» __ %of Compensation based on ____ attained Years of Service

O For Participants hired after March 31, 1986, the Participating Employer will contribute
the percentage of Compensation of such Participant for the Plan Month corresponding to
the rate required of the employer share portion of Social Security (Old Age, Survivors,
and Disability) under the Federal Insurance Contributions Act, as defined in
C.R.S. Scction 24-53-101 for that Plan Month. Employer Contributions will stop once
the Participant’s earnings have reached the social security annual maximum taxable
earnings limit. For Participants hired on or before March 31, 1986, the Participating
Employer will contribute the percentage of Compensation of the Participant for the Plan
Month corresponding to the rate required for the employer share of both the Social
Security and Medicare components of the Federal Insurance Contributions Act, as
defined in C.R.S. Section 24-53-101 for that Plan Month. For Participants hired on or
before March 31, 1986, the Social Security component of the Employer Contribution will
stop once such Participant's earnings have reached the Social Security annusl maximum
taxable earnings limit.

Note if this option is selecied, it must also be selected below in Section 3.3,

CRA Retirement Plan nnd Trust Agreement
Participation Agreement = January 1, 2020 6



3.2 PrioR SERVICE BENEFIT CONTRIBUTIONS. The Participating Employer may elect to make a
Prior Service Benefit Contribution to each Participant. The Participaling Employer will
contribute to each Participant the percentage (elected below) of such Participant's annual
Compensation for the elected Prior Service Period. The Prior Service Benefits will be
contributed to the Plan in equal monthly instaliments during the Pay Out Period provided the
Participant dees not have a Termination Date during the Pay Out Period.

[Specify one aption only.|
X  NotApplicable. Employer is an existing Participating Employer.
O The Participating Employer elects not to make Prior Service Benefit Contributions.

1] The Participating Employer will contribute to each Participant % (no less than three
percent (3%)) of the annual Compensation of each Participant during the Prior Service
Periad.

{Complete both A and B.}

A, The Prior Service Period is (number from one to five) twelve (12) month
period(s) of continuous employment of such Participant ending on the Effective
Date of this Participation Agreement with the Participating Employer.

B. Prior Service Benefit Contributions will be made Lo the Plan in equal monthly
installments aver (number from one (1) 1o thirty-six (36)) continuous
calendar month(s)) (the “Pay Out Period”). 1f the Participant has a Termination
Date during the Pay Out Period, he or she forfeits his or her right to additional
Prior Service Benefil Contributions,

CRA Retirement Flan ond Trust Agreement
Participation Apreement — January 1, 2020 7



3.3(2) MANDATORY PARTICIPANT CONTRIBUTIONS. Each Participant will make a contribution (no less

than three percent (3%)) for each Plan Month as specified below.

[Specify one aption only.]

X
O

The Mandatory Participant Contribution will equal 4 o, of the Compensation of such
Participant for the Plan Month.

The Mandatory Participant Contribution will equal an amount directed by esch
Participant, with a minimum of % and a maximum of % of the
Compensation of such Participant for the Plan Month. Once an election is made, it is an
irrevocable election.

The Mandatory Participant Contribution will equal;

* _ __%of Compensation bascd on ____sttained of Service

o __ %ol Compensation based on ____ attained Years of Service
¢« __ %of Compensation based on ____ attained Years of Service
« ____%of Compensation based on ____ attained Years of Service
s ___ %ol Compensation based on ____ attained Years of Service

For Participants hired after March 31, 1986, the Mandatory Participant Contribution will
cqual the percentage of Compensation of such Participant for the Plan Month
corresponding to the rate required of the cmployer share portion of Social Security (Old
Ape, Survivors, and Disability) under the Federal Insurance Contributions Act, as defined
in C.R.S. Section 24-53-101 for that Plan Month. Mandatory Participanmt Contributions
for a Participant will stop once such Participant’s earnings have reached the social
security annual maximum taxable earnings limit. For Participants hired on or before
March 31, 1986, the Participating Employer will contribute the percentage of
Compensation of the Participant for the Plan Month carresponding to the rate required for
the employer share of both the Social Security and Medicare components of the Federal
Insurance Contributions Act, as defined in C.R.S. Section 24-53-101 for that Plan Month.
For Participants hired on or before March 31, 1986, the Social Security component of the
Mandatory Participant Contribution will stop once such Participant's earnings have
reached the Social Security annual maximum taxable earnings limit.

Note if this option is selected, it must alse be selected below in Section 3.1.

CRA Retirement Plan nnd Trust Agreement
Porticipntion Agreement = Jonoary 1, 2020 8



3.3(a} MANDATORY PARTICIPANT CONTRIBUTIONS. Mandatory Participant Contributions will be:

[Specify one option onip. |

X Pre-tax in accordance with C.R.S. Section 24-54-104(4) and Internal Revenue Code
Section 414(h)(2).”

O After-tax.
3.8 DISCRETIONARY EMPLOYER MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS. The Participating Emplayer will

make an Employer Matching Contribution in accordance with its Employer 457 Contribution
Policy for each Participant who defers compensation into:

[Specify one aption only.|

X Not Applicable. The Participating Employer elects pot to make Discretionary Employer
Matching Conltributions to the Plan.

[J  The Colorado Retirement Assaciation Deferred Compensation Plan and Trust
Agreement.

O [Name of 457(b) plan).

" Note if contrihutions are being picked up and paid by the Employer in liew of employee contributions, the contributions
will be treated us “picked-up® and paid by the Employer on a prospective basis only, from the date this Participation
Agreement is formally adopted.  Participanis may not opt out of the “pick-up™ nar may they receive the contributed
amaunis directly instead of having them paid by the Participating Employer to the Plan,

CRA Rectirement Plan and Trust Agrecment
Participation Agreement - January 1, 2020 9



5.1(b)(1) VESTING OF PARTICIPANT’S ACCOUNTS. [n accordance with Section 5.1 of the Plan, an
Employee-Participant becomes vested in Employer Contributions and Prior Service Benefit
Contributions as follows."

[Specify one option only.]
O fmmediate Vesting. A Participant is 100% vested upan Plan participation.

X Graded Vesting. A Participant will vest pro rata monthly st __ 20 % annual rate.
{must be more than 10%).

[0  Specified Vesting. A Participant will vest pro rata monthly according to the following
schedule (select the vesting percentage at the completion of the Participant’s Years of
Service):

I* Year of Service: ____ %
2™ Yearof Service: ______ %
34 Yearof Service: %
4" Year of Service: ______ %
5" Year of Service: %

6" Ycar of Service: %

U Emplovce-Participants who reach Normaol Retirement Age, Disability, or who die or are presumed deceased will be
10025 vested in accordance with the terms of the Plan,

CRA Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement
Participation Agreement — January 1, 2020 10



5.1{(c) REEMPLOYMENT DATE MORE THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER TERMINATION DATE.

N

Service credit for vesting is not applicable, Employer elected Immediate Vesting, per
Section 5.1(b)(1).

If this uption is selected, skip the remaining options in this Section 5.1(c) and move on
to Section 3.1(e). If this aption is not selected, specify one aption in each of the below
sub-options.

Prior Employment with Participating Emplover.

X

In accordance with the default provisions of Section 5.1 {c) of the Plan, in the event an
Employee terminates employment with the Participating Employer more than thirty (30)
days before his or her Reemployment Date with the Participating Employer, the
Participating Employer will not grant prior service credit for purposes of vesting.

In the event an Employee terminates employment with the Participating Employer more
than thirty {30) days before his or her Reemployment Date with the Participating
Employer, the Participating Employer will grant service credit for purpases of vesting
provided the Employee has a Reemployment Date within Plan Months (not to
exceed twelve (12) Plan Months) of his or her Termination Date.

Prior Employment with any Associgtion Member (other than Participating Emplover).

X

In accordance with the default provisions of Section 2.5(a) of the Plan, in the event an
Employee terminates employment with an Association Memtber more than thirty (30)
days before his or her Reemployment Date with a different Participating Employer. the
Participating Employer will not grant prior service credit for purposes of vesting.

In the event an Employce terminates employment with an Association Member more than
thirty (30) days before his or her Reemployment Date with another Participating
Employer, the Paricipating Employer will grant service credit for purposes of vesting
provided the Employee has a Reemployment Date within Plan Months (not 1o
cxceed twelve (12) Plan Months) of his or her Termination Date.

CRA Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement
Participation Agreement - Jupuary 1, 2020 11



5.1() SERVICE WiITH PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER PRIOR TO ADOPTION OF PLAN.

5.3

8.1

[Specify vne option only. |
K Not Applicable. Employer is an existing Participating Employer.

[ Past Service Credit. Atthe time this Participation Agreement is executed, all Employees

presently employed by the Participating Employer will have all periods of employment
credited towards the vesting schedule referenced above in Section 3.1(b){1).

FORFEITURES ACCOUNT,

[Specify one aption only.]
[0  NotApplicable. Participants arc 100% vested in their Accounts.

B Inaccordance with the default provisions of Section 11.6 of the Plan, forfeitures will be
utilized to reduce future Employer Contributions.

OJ Forfeitures will be allocated among the Accounts of active Participants in the Plan.

Loans To ELIGIBLE BORROWERS.

{Specify one option only.]
[0  Participant loans are not allowed.

(X Participant loans are allowed in accordance with Article 8 of the Plan and loan
procedures adopted by the Plan Administrator,

DEFINITION OF COMPENSATION. For purposes of calculating contributions, the Participating
Employer excludes the following from the definition of Compensation (as defined in Section 1.9
of the Plan):

[Select as many EXCLUSIONS as applicable.]

Bonuses.

Overtime pay.

Premiums for shift difTerential.

Fringe benefits, expense reimbursements, deferred compensation, and welfare benefits.
Heliday pay.

Vacation pay.

O0XKOKXK X

Sick pay.

CRA Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement
Participation Agreement — January 1, 2020 12



X  Paid Time Off (PTO).
E All post-severance compensation.

[J  Other fplease specifi]:

 h ok %k ok ok o W

The Participating Employer and the Colorado Relirement Association have executed this
Participation Agreement and have accepted its terms.

Dated this 21 b day of _Sb.o‘i"w!:/@.ﬂ Z 4.

Upper San Juan Library District
Participating Employer

By: Mﬂb’“ﬁ

Tite: kb r'm«G/ Dire sl

Dated this ___ 26" day of_September, 20 24

COLORADO RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
Pian Sponsor

[

Title: CRA Executive Director

13845387 _vi2

CRA Retircment Plan and Trust Agreement
Participslion Agreement — January 1, 2020 13






00°0G1 ¢ [ oovoLL $ | 00°009'c $ | 00'9¥E'Z ¢ | 00802’ ¢ | oo'8e0'Z $ Buuea|D yadren
00'000'L $00viL ¢ | 00°000's $ [ 00'618°E $ | £6°'68E'L $1.iL0LL'0L $ aoueusjuiey Buping
00°'066 $ | o0'0z2 $ | 00'00Z°) $ | 00°'0v6 $ | 00°0¥S ¢ | o0ovs $ __Buuoyuopy uuery au4
sasuadxg Buipung
sosuadxg buyeledo
SIYNLIANIXD
00'189'290°L $|o0008S'096 ¢ |o0028c'z00't $| 001292y,  $|98°069'€l9 S |ovliEvZ9  $ anuaaey pue awoouj [ejoL
00°0St'8S ¢ | 00'vLO'2ZE ¢ | 00°0S6'2Y ¢ | oo'z¥'es $ [ ozevi'se $ | oo'zeL'sl $ anuaAey |ejo [
00002} $ | 00°009 ¢ | 00°002'L $ | 00°001'L $ | 00°002'L $ [ 00002°L $ $894 UlWPY uolepunod
00°00S't $ | 00008 $ - $ 8woou| {s)diysse|oyas
00°000'EY $ | 00'16G'EC $ | 00°000'0E $ | 00°062'9¢ $ | 26'6.5'0L $ | oz'z65'2 $ awoou| Jsasayu|
- $ 0005 $ 00°0v2 $ ssaindwo) pade|dey jo ajes
00'002" | $ | 00'€£9 $ | 00002°} $ | 00°26E°) $ [ 00'150') $ | 00'vPE'L $ (uoneunwe pue xe) yuewdinb3 jo asn
00052 $ | oo'vEl $ | 00'002 $ | 00'SE2 $ | co'8Le $ | 00'E2y $ (spieD Ateiqy 1g) snueasy JBuyl0
00°'008 ¢ | 00'L6e ¢ | 00058 ¢ | oo'vze $| 0822t $ | 1B'ESS'L $ Tl/sxooq )so7
00'000'6 $ | 00082’ $ | 00000'8 ¢ [ 00°'166'6 ¢ | ovzal's $ | 09'+69'2 $ seydod
s $ | 00°0L s - $|o0e s - 8 | o6l $ alWoJU| SU0RY8||0D
00'005'L ¢ | 00528 $ | 000051 $ | 00'vED'2 $ | SL¥68°L $ | s8'0v6'e $ (esnoH uy) ajes yoog
AnuUaAay
00'LEC'P00'L $|00995'826 $|00ZEp'6S6  $ | 00'62L°069  $|99ivs'8p9  $ | op6LL'909  § alodu| jejo L
00'Les'se6 S |oovivele S| o00iee'v6  $ | 00'GBE'Z99  $|Sb660'0E9  $ | 85T.LT8S § xe] Ausdoid |ejol
00°000'02 ¢ | 00°'05L'SE $ | 00°000'0S $ | 00922'59 ¢ | L9'8E2'19 $ 1596219 $ xe} diysiaumQ yoadg
00'1EG'ZL6  $|009/9'v88 $|00°/€2'c68 $|00°ZLL'209 $|90°1LSE'G.S S| 09¥ESLZS  § xe] Auado.d [esauag)
{00°000°2) $ |(00°2Lt) $ {(00°008) $ [(00°86Y) ¢ |(g2 06¥'L) $ |(e5°099) 3 sjusLualeqy
xe) Auadoly
00°001 $ 002€9 $ awoou) J8Yio
00°000'Z1 $ [ 00ast'a ¢ | 00'000°6 $ | 0024Vl $ | 00°'s¥9'9 ¢ | o0g€ol'LlL $ sjuesD
00009 $ | 00'00€ $ | 00005 $| - $ | se'092 ¢ [ o0'ov6's $ PajoMISay SUOHEUCQ/SHID
00°000'9 $ | 009262 $ | 00°000'S ${ 000892 ¢ | 98'evs's ¢ | 80°€06'g $ SUOIEUOT/SHID
awosu)

INNIATY ANV SWOINI

pasodoid 5202 og aunp 2oz | paydopy $Z0Z s|en)ay €202 s|enjoy ZZ02 S|enY LZ0Z

yeiqg palepdn 1a8png 50T




00°00€'L $ | 00599 $ | o0'00S'L $ | 00GLL'L $ | ooovL'L $ | 000006} $ abeso)g
00°'00E $ | 00gcl $ | 00052 $ - $ - $|¥5L1E 3 asuedx3 xe| se[es
00004 $ | 00’861 $ | 00008 $ | 00'6¥6 $| e les $119vL8 $ xog Od/ebejsod
00'000'S $ | oo'09v'e $ | 000009 % | 00292'9 $ | vz'8eve'e $ | Lvosy'e $ s9||ddng a0

oo'ovL'el $ | oo'g8C'e $ | 00'000°'LL $ | o0'een's $ | oo'ere's $ | ov'8v0'6 $ Sjuawaaiby aaueusjuiey [ejo
00'0VE'6 $ | o0'ge0’'s $ | 00°000'9 $ | 00°000'S $ | v9°'9s0's $ | 26°L96'Y $ i al) alemyjos
00°005'Y $ | o0'0sZ'L $ | 00°000's $ | 00'ge8'e $ | 9e's8l'y ¢ | evoBO'y $ (181d0D) s)LIBY JuiRW B1empleH
sasuadl 2 sjWhy asueuajuRp
00°000'L $ - $ | 000002 $ | 00°29F $ - $ - $ saoinag |ebe)
- $ - ¢ sesuadxg Jleday wel
00°00E'c $ | 00689} $ | 00°00E'E $|o00Liee $ | 0028LE $ | sz'svi'e $ dslaswe|
000088 $ - $ 0005, $ | 00'2Z9¥'9 $ | 00SL¥'S $ | 00'6LE'Y $ ‘Bpig/suauo/ANIger - aauelnsy|
00°004'2 $ - $ | o095z’ $ 1009522 $ | 00’9022 $ | 00951 $ SUOISSILLQ 7 SJouZ - BOUBINSU|
00'59¢ $ - $ | 00'59E $ | 00'59E $ | 00'G9€E $ | 00'S9E $ eoueinsu| Buipuog - 8duelnsu|
00°'00S ¢ | 002ed $ | 00°000'L $ | 00'S62 $|258L9't $|pLssiL $ sued 2 Julew juswdinba
00°00S $| 0016 $ | 00°000'L $ | 00°LSS°L $ - $|15€92 $ 00G$ > ssamxijainjungauawdinb3
00°001 $ | 00°SS $ | 0000l $ | 000K $119v2L $12L96 $ §8a4 pJeg 1pa4] '3 UoRIB|Ia]
00°005'S1 $ | 00°000°} $ | 00'00G'} $ | 00°000'vL $ | 00°000'tL $ | 00'009'8 $ wney xe|/bunipny
00'525'L $|oozLL'L $ | 00'000'9 $ | 00° .50t $ | 9z'8sv's $ | 05€06'L $ Bunebpng 1§ bununoooy

sasuadx3] asiyp e

00'0SE'EY $ | 00'68Z'02 % | oo'0zZ¥'ss $ | 00° P52V $ | so'ELv'BE $ | 1zvoL'sy $ sesuadxz Buipjing ejo
- $| - $ | 00'00S $| - $] - $ | 00008 $ bulueaj) mopuim

00°0ZE'St ¢ | 00189'2L 4| oo0BL'OL $ | 00'L8EL $ | ee09e'El $|ovioLLtL $ sanir 1ejol
00'000't ¢ | 00°98S'L ¢ | 00005’y $ | 00'e68'E $11l97L6'e $ | L6¥PS'E $ 19Mag @ J8jEM
00'00S't $ | 00'S69°C $ | cooet'e $ | 00'LEY'E $ | 02966 $ | og'008 $ [eLBL|I08S)
00°02¢ ¢ | 00921 $ | 00°05€E $ | 00'6LE 3| l9€ee $|0e0lE $ seg
00°005°'L $ | oovie'e $ | co'oos's $ | 00'822'L $|s96Ll'e $ | eesvr'o $ Ayomaa3
sentun
00'0ss'} $|00°2¥L $ | 00’0002 $ | 00°25F'L $ | o9'9vt’lL $ | 02 v28'L $ ysel|
00'000'8 $|00€se'e $ | oo'o00'0L ¢ [ oo€Le's $ | 00'S6L'Y $|ZLir'y $ [eAOWSY MOus
00°00S $ | 00'08BE % | 00°005 $|0010L $ | €LEEE $|ELBLL $ aoueudjuIeE Spuno.S/adedspuen
00°0¥8'Sl $ | o0'00Z'L $ | oo'ov8'sl $ | 00°00F' L $ | 00°00¥'vL $ | 00°00F' VL 3 [euojluer

pasodold 5202 0g sunp $Zoe paydopy vZo0Z SIenOy £202 s|lenoy ZzZ0z s|enjoy LZ0e

yeiq paiepdn 128png §Z0Z




00°000'S1 $ | 00'¥20'vL $ | co'o00's1L $ | 00'290'ZL $ | e6'8¥L'0L $ | oo'co0'0L $ seurzebej/s)o0g-3/01pny 8jqepeojumog
00°000'% $ | 00'292'L $ | o0'0sL'2 $ | oo'L9v'e $ | ¥pses'z $|vLovl'e $ yinoA  synpe -- aAQ
00°000'8 $ [ 00°265'c $ | 00'000'2 $ | o0'28'9 $ | 0e°Z€8'0 $ | s9'295'9 $ yinoA g synpe -- syoog oipny
[BUBIW Juld-UON
00°0S $1 - $ 00°'59 $|ve9 $ sesuadx3 we)| )50
00°000'81 $ | o0 LOL'9 $ | oo'oo0'sL $ | 00'¥2P'ZL $|eLovi'ol $ | 92vEv'CL $ seseqeje( 2|ucsas|3
00'P5L'L $| - $ | 00°005°L $ | 00’6689 $ | #0'e88' $|ZL'vi6'S $ (1) eo1Arag JBLNOD
s|epaje asn alqnd
00°'00E'E $ | 00°028'2 $ [ 00°008'S $ | 00°29E'y $ | Lo'868'e $ | v1L'zee') $ suonejey aiqnd ejoL
00°00¢ ¢ | oo'ssL $ | oo'on0'L ¢ [ oo0LE $ | oo'082'L $ s)0ayD punosbyoen SBA
00°000°L $ | o0'2ea $ | 00005 $ | 00096 $|161PLL $|¥i89L $ 4.)S ® s183)un|oA
- $f - $ | oc'00L $| - 8| - $| - $ . SIOMO|
00°000'2 $ | 00'e66'L $ | 000022 $ | 00'2Z65'Z $ | 01'9s2') $|00¥8L'L $ Hd/bunayiepyaesnngo
suope|ay ajiqngd
00°000'0L $ | 00'919's $ | co'002's $ | 00°'b2E'0L $ | Ze'68%'9 $ | 86°196' $ sweiboid [ejo
00°000'2 $ | 00'682'L $ | 00'002'2 $ | o0'88L'2 $|19LLL'L $ | orisi'L $ Bujpeay Jawuing
068 1S3
05.% SVd
00828 qI7 SonS ynpy
00°000't $ | oo'e6r'z $ | 00'000' $ | 00'ebZ'e $ | 58°2i€'C $ | 96°296 $ (ile) swesboud ynpy
00°005'L $ | 00'22¥'L $ | 00°000'1 $ ( 00°G98 $ | oL'oLs $ | 06'6€9 $ sweiBold uaa ]
000052 $ | 00" L0v ¢ | 00°000°2 $ | 00'820'F $ | 99'62'L $|zLe8L'L $ sweboid s,uappyd
swesbouig
00°000'9L $| - $ | 00"000's $ [ 00°00L'L $| - $ §40}28.3U0Y) 8pysINQ fejol
00°000°L $| - $ | 00'000'€ $ siojoenUO) Juspuadapu)
00°000'S1 sl - $ | 000002 $ | 0000} $ Bupinsuo) 1|
slojoenuos SpIsing
00°'0£0'9 $ | 00°L28°G1L $ [ 007129 lF $ | 00'988'2S $ | 0Z'v2L'6E $ | 0.'6569'aF $ Sosuadx3g 80 Aieigi] ejog
000042 $ | 00°280°L $ | 00008’z $ | 008E8'Z $|ecil'y $ | 95'906'2 $ auoydajay
pasodold 5Z0Z 0gaunrpzoz | pejdopy vzoz sjenjoy £202 s|enjoy ZzZ0z S[ENOY LZ02

Jesq parepdn) 128png 520z




sjyjouag
TINNOSYH3d ANV S1i43N38
£6'595'62 $ | 00'068'tZ $ { 00°005'8Z $ | 00°250'BL $ | 80bGC'ZL $ | 62'969'G1 $ sasuadx3 pax|d |ejo|
£6°'595'62 $ | 00'068've $ | 00°005°82 $ | 00°250'81L $ | BObSZ'LL % | 6£'969'S1 $ | (enusaay xe| Auadoly %¢) aad s,ainsear]
SIASNIdX3 a3axid
00's8L'vET $ - $ | 00°000'LS $|o00¥1L9'L $ - $ | 00'96¢'Z $ Aepno jepdes (ejo |
00°00%'LL $| - $ | 00'000°L $ | o0Lv6 $ 13410 - 005$ < ABiojouyoa |
00°592'L $ - $ | 00°000'L $10022 $ - $| 00081 g MBN - alemyjos
- ¢ - [ welsAs euoyd
00°005'0Z $ - $ | co00s'L $ - $ 00'9LE'Z $ MaN - Juswdinb3 J)
005$ < ABojouyoa |
00°00S $ - $ | 00°00S 3 - $ - $ - $ uonezmbiq wijo)N
000°'002% - $ | 00°000'0S $ sasuadx3 uejd a)seiy
- [} - ¢ | 000002 ¢ {syawanoiduy) Gudeaspuen
00°00S $| - $ | 00°000°} $ | 00109 $ - $ 005$ < Juawd|nb3/sainix)/anjung
AYILNO TVLIdYD
00'p86'L2 $|o0vLY'LR $ | 00'16E'802 $ | 00'8EL'LBL $ [ GE'LOE'ESL $ | E9°62¥'091 $ sasuedx3 Buyessdg |ejo |
00°00L°LL $ | oo'8EL’) $ | 00°000'LL $ | o0'08¥'L $ | s8viL's $ | ZE'6S0°L $ uofieonp3 yejs jejoi
00°009'c $ 10061 $ | 00°00S'e $ | 00'568°1L $11196 $|2EeB 3 CLTNE
00°000'9 $] 00616 $ | 00000'9 $ | o0'so¥'s $ | ¥2859'Y $ | 00108 $ diysiaqurapy
00°005°L $ | 00'002 $ | 00°005'L $ | 00°029 $ | 00002 $ 00521 LY sdoysyiopn/seouasajueD
uopjeanp3 Hels
00°v0Z'00l $ | oo'8LO'LE $ | 00°0SE'5L $ | 00'68P'€9 $|2v'1L98'68 $|8c9zl't9 $ Sjelierely esfy Jljqnd jejot
00°000'8Y $ | 00'¥E0'ZL $ | 00°'000's2 $|00.el'CE $ | vZvie'ee $|19ri9'p2Z s [ELB)EW ULl 1B)0 1
000022 $]00622°) $ 1000002 $ | 00'669'L $ | coisv'e $ | 6L V002 3 suofiduosqng
00°008'sY $ | 00'sSZ'0l $ { 00°000'€Z $ | o0BEQ'LZ $ | czis8'02 $ | 29'695'2Z $ sjoog
[euaep Juud
00'+0Z'2S $ | oo'esg'alL $ | 00'058'vE $ | 00FOE'LZ $1499L561 $|6220L°8L s [BLBjepy Jlld-UopN [ejat
- $ | 00001 $|o0LlL $ - $ - $ alsniy
pasodoud 50z 0g aung yz0z pejdopy ¢z0z S[enpy £20g s|emoy 2zoz S|BENIY LZOT

Yeuq paiepdn 123png sz0z




89'veL'S6L'L § 002682211 § Jeef jo pua aduejeq pund (ejden
00'45€'22L'L $ 00'959'6¥8  § 1eaf jo BujuuiBaq aoueleg pund [enden
S/L08'cy $ anasay |epde o) Jejsuel; JoN
(e6'c95'62)  § (toge L) swoau| ajqejieAeun)
B9'29€'€L $ 00102'922 $|00ve9'9SL  $|62¥59'9vL  $ [ LL'SEZ'Y8 $ eouejeq punj uj abueys jaN
BECIE'6B6  $)00009'00c  $|00989'sz. $|00226'S8S ¢ | 20980225  § | S€'929005  § seJn)|puadx3 Jejo
Ov'845'L.y  $)008S6'261  $]|o00S62'Ley  $|o00Goe'vze ¢ | vo'0Zb'ose ¢ |ccpoDcoE  § |auuosiag pue sjjeusy |2jo L
jauuosia jejoj
00°00S't $| - $ | 00"000'0€ $ Aed aanuaoul Jeak jo pug
00'000'E $ | 00052 $ | 00’000’ $ | 006841 $ | 00921 $ | 0056l $ ansqns
00'925'26€  $ ] 00'G615'25L  $]|00000's2e  $|000S6'vSe  § | 81965692  $ | B9 ISleez  § selejes Jeinbey
91'¥91 3 upny [e1adg uoneaep pansasy
[auuosiad
0v'ess'ss $ | 00'e6L'se $ 1 00'G6L'EL $ | 00°0€6'49 $ | 91'869'09 $ | 61'€6¥'69 $ Slysueg |ejo
00°125'c $ | 0012Z5'e $ | 00°009'c ${00125'e $ | s8'05Z'e $ | 8028’ $ weBo.d souels|ssy eekoduig
85°LLL'L $| - $ | 00'590'L $ | 00°250'L $ | 00065 $ | 00929 $ %E'0 dUWOD) S,UBLDLIOAA
8G° 2711 $ | 00'vbe $ | 00022 $ | 00’889 $ | ¥6'9c9 $ | sy'906 $ Ul %20 0) %€"0 uawhojdwaun ajelg
o w sainjiayo juswaJpay
00'8v9'L1 $ | 00'g8L'¥ $ | 00°002'L1 $| 00616, $|55°209'8 $ | ecoes's $ JusLaiey
£9°169'G $ | 00°L69'2 $ | 0009L's $ | 00°286'F $|sez19' $ | vP'0L9'Y $ Sp') - 2JedIpay
L9'9EE' V2 $ | 00'6¥9'0L $ | 00'050°2Z $ | 00'eze'Le $ | L2'SbL'6L $ | zvreLe'sl $ 2'9 - Ajundag |eog
00°000'0E $ | 0000071 $ | 00'000°'0€ $ | 00'sER'8Z $ | 00°05Z'62 $ | 00'000'0¢ $ SOUBMOJIY SouBINSy|
pasodouid 520z 0€ aunr $zoZ | pejdopy 20z s[enjay £20Z S[ENOY ZZ0Z S{en)ay Lz0Z

Yyeiq parepdn 183png S70zZ




